






 
 

Proclamation 
 

WHEREAS, April 13th thru April 19th is designated as National Public Safety 
Telecommunications Week; and 
 
WHEREAS, emergencies can occur at anytime and the prompt response of police 
personnel is critical to the protection of life and preservation of property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the first and most critical contact our citizens have with emergency services 
is the Leander Police Communications Center, and the safety of the public and the 
responding emergency personnel is dependant upon the quality and accuracy of 
information obtained; and 
 
WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators are the single vital link for our police 
officers by monitoring their activities by radio, providing them information, and having 
contributed substantially to the safety of the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, each dispatcher has exhibited compassion, understanding and 
professionalism during the performance of their job in the past year; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Mayor Chris Fielder and the Leander City Council call upon all 
citizens of our community to recognize the week of April 13th – April 19th, 2014, as 
 
 

“National Public Safety 
Telecommunications Week” 

 
 
In witness thereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 
Leander to be affixed.  

 

         

                                                   Attest:   

__________________________                                                 ___________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                                  Debbie Haile, City Secretary                                                                                                  
 



 
 

1                                                                                 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
DEVELOPMENT TOUR 

and 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 
201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ April 3, 2014 at 5:30 PM     

 
   5:30pm – Lakewood Park Tour 
 
   Council will leave from Pat Bryson at 5:30 and reconvene at 7:00 pm for Regular City Council Meeting 
   (No action will be taken by City Council during the tour) 
 
   Council left Pat Bryson for the tour at 5:30 pm 
   Council returned from the tour at 6:40  pm 
 
   7:00 pm 
  
  1.  Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance  
       Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:02 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
       Mayor Fielder delivered the invocation 
 
  2.  Roll Call 

          All present 
 
     3.  Staff Comments:  
           
          Bill Gardner, Fire Chief spoke about the Blackboard Notifications System that will go in 
          Affect on Friday April 4, 2014 
 
     4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  

       Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins.  
 
  5.  Proclamation for “Light It Up Blue” for Autism Awareness 
       Sponsored by Council Member Garcia 
       Council Member Garcia read the Proclamation 
 
       Maria Watts was presented the Proclamation from the Council 
   

   
  6.  Approval of the minutes: March 20, 2014 
        March 27, 2014 (Special Meeting)  
 
 

                                                   Mayor – Christopher Fielder  
                     Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette       Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese  
                     Place 2 – Kirsten Lynch              Place 5 – Jason Dishongh (Mayor Pro Tem) 
          Place 3 – Simon Garcia               Place 6 – David Siebold  
                                                   City Manager – Kent Cagle 

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 



 
 

2                                                                                 

 
 
      
 
7.  Second Reading of an ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing 145.26 acres, more or 

less, and 52.290 acres, more or less, in Williamson County, Texas, being generally located at 
the Kittie Hill Airport location, north of Hero Way, west of Ronald Reagan Boulevard and south 
of the San Gabriel River and including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; 
approving a service plan for the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a severability 
clause and an effective date; and providing for open meetings and other related matters. 

  8.  Second Reading of an ordinance on Zoning Case # 13-Z-026: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
       Composite Zoning Ordinance for several tracts of land located to the west of Bloody Hollow, abutting  
       FM 1431 on the south and Nameless Road on the west., Leander, Travis County, Texas 
 
  9.  Second Reading of an ordinance on Zoning Case #14-Z-004: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
       Composite Zoning Ordinance for two parcels of land located at 409 & 503 Horseshoe Drive, Leander  
       Williamson County, Texas 
 

   10.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Connelly’s Crossing,  
          Phase 1A 
 
   11.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Mason Ranch, Ph. 1 Sec. 1 
 
   12.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Mason Ranch, Ph. 2 Sec. 1 
 
   13.  Contract Awards to Lease & Purchase Golf Course Maintenance Equipment  
 
          Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
          Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
           

 
               14. Second Public Hearing on annexation of an area of land being 594 acres, more or less, being            

generally located along the planned northern extension of Lakeline Blvd. to Old 2243 West and 
including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson and Travis 
Counties, Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits. 

       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
        Larry Gilbreath 13303 RR 2243 – spoke against 
 
15. Second Public Hearing on annexation of an area of land being 5.52 acres, more or less, being  

generally located north of CR 264 and east of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and including the abutting streets, 
roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson County, Texas and adjacent and contiguous 
to the city limits. 

       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
     

16. Second Public Hearing on annexation of an area of land being 304.13 acres, more or less, and     
52.290 acres, more or less, being generally described as the Ridgmar Landing area north of East 
Crystal Falls Parkway, south of RR 2243 and west of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and including the abutting 
streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson County, Texas and adjacent and 
contiguous to the city limits. 

       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
       Kevin Shuff, 41 Fair Oaks St. – spoke against 
 John Sommerfeld, 101 Windemere West – spoke against 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: NO ACTION 



 
 

3                                                                                 

 
 
 
 

  
17.  Public Hearing on extension of the term of a franchise for Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. to provide  
       Recycling and Solid Waste collection and disposal services within the City of Leander. 
       Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
 
       Rick Fraumann – Texas Disposal System – asked City to not extend contract 
       Tanya Clawson – Al Clawson Disposal – gave council an update on recycling 
 
       Action on an Ordinance Extending the Term of a Franchise Granted to Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. to  
       Provide Recycling And Solid Waste Collection And Disposal Services Within The City Of Leander;  
       Under Ordinance Number 11-007-00 
       Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
18.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #13-Z-027: Consider a zoning change for 150.894 acres, more or 
       less, for several tracts of land generally located to the southwest of the intersection of San Gabriel  
       Pkwy. and US 183 from PUD, Planned Unit Development to an amended PUD, Planned Unit  
       Development, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Mark Baker on behalf of Sentinel Cotter Leander LLC  
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
        Mark Baker, applicant gave a presentation 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #13-Z-027: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning  
       Ordinance for several tracts of land generally located to the Southwest of the intersection of San  
       Gabriel Pkwy. and US 183, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
 
       Motion made by Council Member Lynch to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

 19.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #13-Z-028: Consider a zoning change for 197.55 acres, more or     
less, for several tracts of land located at 2680 CR 268, 17851 Ronald W. Reagan, generally located 
north of Hero Way, West of Ronald Reagan Blvd. & south of San Gabriel from GC-3-C, General 
Commercial, Interim SFS-2-B, Single Family Suburban and Interim SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural to 
PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 

         Applicant: Blake J. Magee on behalf of Palmera Ridge Development, Inc. and MP52, LLC 
         Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
          Blake Magee, applicant gave a presentation 
 
         Action on Zoning Case #13-Z-028: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance 

for several tract of land located at 2680 CR 268, 17851 Ronald W. Reagan, generally located north of 
Hero Way, West of Ronald Reagan Blvd. & south of San Gabriel, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 

 
         Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve with recommendations from P&Z 

Commission.  Second by Council Member Garcia.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 



 
 

4                                                                                 

 
 
20.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #14-Z-005: Consider a zoning change for 5.69 acres, more or less, 
       for a tract of land located at 1001 Horizon Park Blvd. from, SFU/MH-2-B, Single Family  
       Urban/Manufactured Home to TF-2-B, Two Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Michael and Theresa Kopecky on behalf of Willie and Sue A. Kopecky 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
        William Bonnell, 1007 Tanglewood – expressed his concerns with the zoning request 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #14-Z-005: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance  
       for a tract of land located at 1001 Horizon Park Blvd., Leander, Williamson County. Texas 
       Motion made by Council Member Garcia to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
       Mayor Fielder called for a recess at 8:00 pm 
       Council reconvened at 8:10 pm  
 
21.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #13-Z-025: Consider a zoning change for 0.94 acres, more or less,  
       for a tract of land located on the northwest corner of Osage Drive and Highland Trail from SFU-2-B,  
       Single Family Urban to PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Sam Kiger, P.E. on behalf of Lookout Development Group LP 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Mike Siefert with Lookout Group gave a presentation 

       
 

 Haley Farmer, 1812 Western Justice – spoke against 
       Brian Stevens, 2717 Sun Mountain Drive – spoke against 
       Thomas Bertone 1812 Cross Draw, - did not speak but is against the zoning 

Debbie Schmidt 1816 Buffalo Speedway – against 
Todd Bourgiois 1700 Trustworthy – spoke against 
Laura Yambrick 1908 Western Justice – spoke against 
Carl C. Norman  1821 Cross Draw Trail – spoke against 
Sally King 2708 Sun Mountain Drive – spoke against 
Skip Jones, 2708 Sun Mountain Drive – spoke against 
Judy Irish, 2709 Sun Mountain Drive – spoke against 
Steve Brand 1902 Alamo Bound – spoke for  
Steve Kovacs 2628 Homecoming – spoke against 

        Allie Paw, 2237 Pow Wow – spoke against 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #13-Z-025: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance  
       for a tract of land located on the northwest corner of Osage Drive and Highland Trail, Leander,  
       Williamson County, Texas 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Siebold to deny.  Second by Council Member Garcia . 
       Motion fails to deny the request, with Council Member Lynch, Dishongh, Navarrette and Mayor  
       Fielder voting against the denial. 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Lynch to approve with an additional sidewalk through the 

property for pedestrians and to lower the square footage to 5000 sq. ft. for the building and the 
height of building to be less than 26 ft.  Second by Council Member Navarrette.      

 
       Substitute motion by Council Member Siebold to table this item until first meeting in May.   
       Second by Council Member Garcia.  Motion passes, 5 to 1 with Council Member Lynch voting  
       against. 
 
 
 



 
 

5                                                                                 

 
 
 
 

  
22.  Consider action on the letter agreement between the City of Leander and BLG Hawkes, LLC for 93.4 

acres, more or less, generally located approximately 3,500 feet to the west of the intersection of North 
Bagdad Road and Old 2243 West on the north side of Old 2243 West. Encompassing the property 
known as the Hawkes Landing Subdivision within the city limits of the City of Leander, Texas, 
Williamson County, Texas 

        Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Garcia to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
23.  Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding a proposal to establish a mobile food trailer on  
       City-Owned property at the corner of South St. and Brushy St. 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Mona-Lee D'Aunno 409 Mt. Laurel Drive, Cedar Park – spoke for 
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to direct staff to continue to explore other cities 

rules for mobile food vendors and the use of city property.  Second by Council Member Lynch 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
  
24.  Consider action to approve a reimbursement agreement with Catalina Ranch, LLC for the oversizing of  
       a wastewater line 
       This item was pulled by the applicant 
 
25.  Discussion and possible action to staff regarding a proposal to establish a Public Improvement  
       District (PID) and a TIRZ Development and reimbursement agreement for the Oak Creek 
       Project 
       This item was pulled by the applicant 
 
26.  Consider approval of the third amendment to the Nameless Valley Ranch Development Agreement 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained  
 
        Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
27.  Council Members Closing Statements 
       Council members gave their closing statements 
 
28.  Adjournment 
       With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:22 pm 

       
 
 
           Attest: 
 
 
         _______________________________                          ________________________________ 
         Christopher Fielder, Mayor             Debbie Haile, TRMC – City Secretary 

REGULAR AGENDA 



AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 17, 2014 

 
 
Subject: Consider Acceptance of a Trail Grant from Texas Parks & Wildlife  
 
Background: In May 2013 the City was awarded a $56,000 grant to extend the North Branch 
Brushy Creek Trail 2,000 linear feet to the eastern boundary of Benbrook Park.  Trail work is 
included in the first phase of the baseball complex construction to be built this year.  The local 
match for the project is $14,000 and the funds are part of the baseball complex improvement 
project for the park. 
 
When complete, the North Branch Brushy Creek Trail will connect to the trail being constructed 
by the Oak Creek Development that was recently approved by the Council. The Oak Creek 
Development will dedicate approximately 26-acres of public parkland and construct an 
additional 3,000 linear feet of the North Branch Brushy Creek Trail.  
 
Financial Consideration: $14,000 local match (Parkland Dedication Fund 75-23-9000 
$14,000) 
  
Recommendation: Staff respectfully requests Council approval to accept the Texas Parks & 
Wildlife Trail Grant and authorized the City Manager to execute the grant agreement.   
 
Attachments: Grant Agreement  
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 







AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 17, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Consideration of a License Agreement for the installation and 

maintenance of irrigation within the City right-of-way. 
 
Background: The Travisso, Ltd has requested a license agreement to allow them 

to install and maintain the irrigation, hardscape including entry 
monuments, walls, and structures; decorative street lights and 
street signs within City right-of-way of Travisso Parkway and 
Venezia View as shown in the attached exhibits. 

  
Origination: Applicant:  Adib Khoury, Vice President (TMC Travisso GP, 

LLC) on behalf of the Travisso, Ltd. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the proposed license agreement. 
 
Attachments: 1.  License Agreement  
 2.  Exhibits 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director    
  
 04/10/2014 



LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 
 
The City of Leander, Texas a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Texas 
situated in Travis & Williamson Counties, Texas (“the City” or “Licensor”), and the Travisso, Ltd, a 
Texas limited partnership, (“Licensee”) enter into this License Agreement (“Agreement”) on this 
the 17th day of April,  2014 upon the terms and conditions set forth below. 
 
I. PURPOSE OF LICENSE AGREEMENT.  The City grants to Licensee permission to use 

the licensed property for the following purposes only:  
 
 Construction, installation, and maintenance of the following improvements for the 

Travisso  Subdivision (the “Subdivision”) located in the rights-of-way of Travisso 
Parkway and Venezia View, Leander, Travis County, Texas being: (1) landscaping; 
(2) landscape lighting;  (3) irrigation system for landscaping;  (4) hardscape to 
include entry monuments, walls, and structures;  (5) entry and community signage; 
(6) decorative streetlights;  and (7) decorative street signs that comply with the 
Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (TMUTCD); hereinafter referred 
to as the “Improvements”.  The locations of the rights-of-way containing the 
Improvements are more particularly shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
The above-described properties, hereinafter referred to as the “licensed property”, are further shown 
in Exhibit “A” attached to this Agreement and incorporated by reference for all purposes. 
 
The City makes this grant solely to the extent of its right, title and interest in the licensed property, 
without any express or implied warranties. 
 
Licensee agrees that: (A) the construction of the Improvements permitted by this Agreement shall 
be done in compliance with all applicable City, County, State and/or Federal laws, ordinances, 
regulations and policies now existing or later adopted; (B) that all construction and installation of 
the Improvements will be completed in a timely manner without delay; (C) the Licensee will 
construct the Improvements according to plans filed with the City.  Any changes in construction 
will be approved by the City; and (D) any Improvements located in the City’s right-of-way shall be 
subject to City approval prior to placement and installation.  Any provision herein to the contrary 
notwithstanding, Licensee shall be liable for, and shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from 
all damages, causes of action, and claims arising out of or in connection with Licensee's installation, 
operation, maintenance or removal of the improvements permitted under this Agreement. 
 
II.  FEE.  No annual fee shall be due in connection with this Agreement. 
 
III.  THE CITY'S RIGHTS TO LICENSED PROPERTY.  This Agreement is expressly subject 
and subordinate to the present and future right of the City, its successors, assigns, lessees, grantees, 
and Licensees, to construct, install, establish, maintain, use, operate, and renew any public utilities 
facilities, franchised public utilities, rights-of-way, roadways, or streets on, beneath, or above the 
surface of the licensed property. 



 
Said uses of the licensed property by the City are permitted even though such use may substantially 
interfere with or destroy Licensee's use of the licensed property, or the Improvements.  In case of a 
declared emergency, damage to or destruction of Licensee's property shall be at no charge, cost, 
claim, or liability to the City, its agents, contractors, officers, or employees. 
 
Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement to the contrary, the City retains the right to enter 
upon the licensed property, at any time and without notice, assuming no obligation to Licensee, to 
remove any of the licensed improvements or alterations thereof whenever such removal is deemed 
necessary for: (a) exercising the City's rights or duties with respect to the licensed property; (b) 
protecting persons or property; or (c) the public health or safety with respect to the licensed 
property. 
 
IV.  INSURANCE.  Licensee shall, at its sole expense, provide a commercial general liability 
insurance policy, written by a company acceptable to the City and licensed to do business in Texas, 
with a combined single limit of not less than $600,000.00, which coverage may be provided in the 
form of a rider and/or endorsement to a previously existing insurance policy.  Such insurance 
coverage shall include the City as an additional-insured.  This insurance coverage shall cover all 
perils arising from the activities of Licensee, its officers, employees, agents, or contractors, relative 
to this Agreement, or otherwise within the public right-of-way and property within the licensed 
area.  Licensee shall be responsible for any deductibles stated in the policy.  A certificate of 
insurance evidencing such coverage shall be delivered to the City Secretary of the City within thirty 
(30) days of the effective date of this Agreement. 
 
Licensee shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse, All 
insurance certificates shall include a clause to the effect that the policy shall not be canceled, 
reduced, restricted or otherwise limited until forty-five (45) days after the City has received written 
notice as evidenced by a return receipt of registered or certified mail. 
 
V.  INDEMNIFICATION.  Licensee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City and its 
officers, agents and employees against all claims, suits, demands, judgments, expenses, including 
attorney's fees, or other liability for personal injury, death, or damage to any person or property 
which arises from or is in any manner caused by the Licensee's construction or maintenance of the 
Improvements or use of the licensed property.  This indemnification provision, however shall not 
apply to any claims, suits, damage, costs, losses, or expenses arising solely from the negligent or 
willful acts of the City; provided that for the purposes of the foregoing, the City's act of entering into 
this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a “negligent or willful act.” 
 
VI.  CONDITIONS. 
 
A. Licensee's Responsibilities.  Licensee will be responsible for any damage to or repair of the 
Improvements.  Further, Licensee shall reimburse the City for all costs of replacing or repairing any 
property of the City or of others which was damaged or destroyed as a result of activities under this 
Agreement by, or on behalf of, Licensee. 
 
B. Maintenance.  Licensee shall maintain the licensed property and the Improvements in good 



condition and making any necessary repairs to the Improvements at its expense.   
 
C. Modification of Improvements. Licensee agrees that modification of the Improvements shall 
be at Licensee's expense.  Licensee shall obtain the proper permits prior to modification of the 
Improvements shall be at Licensee's sole discretion, except where otherwise provided by this 
Agreement.  This Agreement, until its expiration or revocation shall run as a covenant with the land, 
and the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding on the grantees, successors and 
assigns of Licensee.  Licensee shall cause any immediate successors-in-interest to have actual notice 
of this agreement. 
 
D. Default.  In the event that Licensee fails to maintain the licensed property or otherwise 
comply with the terms or conditions as set forth herein, then the City shall give Licensee written 
notice thereof, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address set forth 
below.  Licensee shall have thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice to take action to 
remedy the failure complained of, and, if Licensee does not satisfactorily remedy the same within 
the thirty (30) day period, the City may terminate this Agreement. 
 
Licensee Address      Licensor Address 
Travisso, Ltd       City of Leander 
Attention: Heath Melton     Attention:  City Manager 
11200 Lakeline Blvd      P.O. Box 319 
Austin, TX, 78717      Leander, Texas 78641 
        
VII.COMMENCEMENT AND TERMINATION.This Agreement shall begin with the effective 
date and continue thereafter for so long as Licensee is constructing or maintaining the 
Improvements as set forth herein.  If Licensee abandons construction or maintenance of all or any 
part of the Improvements or licensed property as set forth in this Agreement, then this Agreement, 
shall expire and terminate following thirty (30) days written notice to the Licensee if such 
abandonment has not been remedied by the Licensee within such period; the City shall thereafter 
have the same complete title to the licensed property so abandoned as though this Agreement had 
never been made and shall have the right to enter the licensed property and terminate the rights of 
Licensee, its successors and assigns hereunder.  All installations of Licensee not removed shall be 
deemed property of the City as of the time abandoned.  
 
VIII.   TERMINATION. 
 
A. Termination by Licensee.  This Agreement may be terminated by Licensee by delivering 
written notice of termination to the City not later than thirty (30) days before the effective date of 
termination.  If Licensee so terminates, then it shall remove all installations, other than the 
Improvements, that it made from the licensed property within the thirty day notice period at its sole 
cost and expense.  Failure to do so shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. 
 
B. Termination by City.  Subject to prior written notification to Licensee or its successor-in-
interest, this Agreement is revocable by the City if: 
 1. The licensed improvements, or a portion of them, interfere with the City's right-of-

way; 



 2. Use of the right-of-way area becomes necessary for a public purpose; 
 
 3. The licensed improvement, or a portion of them, constitute a danger to the public 

which the City deems not be remediable by alteration or maintenance of such 
improvements; 

 
 4. Despite thirty (30) days written notice to Licensee, maintenance or alteration 

necessary to alleviate a danger to the public has not been made; or 
 
 5. Licensee fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement including, 

but not limited to any insurance or license fee requirements specified herein. 
 
IX. EMINENT DOMAIN.  If eminent domain is exerted on the licensed property by 
paramount authority, then the City will, to the extent permitted by law, cooperate with Licensee to 
effect the removal of Licensee's affected installations and improvements thereon, at Licensee's sole 
expense.  Licensee shall be entitled to retain all monies paid by the condemning authority to 
Licensee for Licensee's installations taken, if any. 
 
X. INTERPRETATION.  Although drawn by the City, this Agreement shall, in the event of 
any dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and neither more 
strongly for or against either party. 
 
XI. APPLICATION OF LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Texas.  If the final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction invalidates any part of this 
Agreement, then the remaining parts shall be enforced, to the extent possible, consistent with the 
intent of the parties as evidenced by this Agreement. 
 
XII. VENUE.  Venue for all lawsuits concerning this Agreement will be in the ___________ 
County, Texas. 
 
XIII. COVENANT RUNNING WITH LAND; WAIVER OF DEFAULT.  This Agreement and 
all of the covenants herein shall run with the land; therefore, the conditions set forth herein shall 
inure to and bind each party's successors and assigns.  Either party may waive any default of the 
other at any time, without affecting or impairing any right arising from any subsequent or other 
default. 
 
XIV. ASSIGNMENT; HOMEOWNER’S ASSOCIATION.  (a)  Licensee shall not assign, 
sublet or transfer its interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the City, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
(b)  The City Manager may approve an assignment, sublease, or transfer of interest in this 
Agreement to a home owner’s association for the Subdivision (the “HOA”) that meets the 
requirements of this paragraph.The HOA must have been legally established; maintenance 
obligations for the Improvements must have been assigned to the HOA; and the HOA must have a 
binding, continuing responsibility for the maintenance and operation of the Improvements and 
shall establish adequate funding for such maintenance and operation. The HOA’s maintenance 



obligation shall be noted on the plat for the Subdivision and in the restrictive covenants filed of 
record for the Subdivision in a form that is acceptable to the City. The restrictive covenants shall 
provide for a monthly or annual assessment sufficient to fund the maintenance and operation of 
the Improvements, shall give the City the authority to judicially enforce the covenants requiring 
adequate assessments to be made and collected and the streets to be maintained and repaired; and 
shall provide for the City to recover any attorney’s fees and expenses incurred in judicial 
enforcement; provided that nothing herein shall obligate the City to maintain and repair the 
Improvements.  This Agreement may not be assigned, sublet, or transferred until the Licensee or 
the HOA submits proof to the City of compliance with this paragraph and the insurance 
requirements under this Agreement.  Subject to compliance with this paragraph and the insurance 
requirements set forth herein, if any, Licensee shall furnish to the City a copy of any such 
assignment or transfer of any of Licensee's rights in this Agreement, including the name, address, 
and contact person of the assignee, along with the date of assignment or transfer. 
 
ACCEPTED, this the 17th  day of April, 2014. 
 
   LICENSOR: CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
       By:_______________________  
       Name: Kent Cagle    
       Title:   City Manager 
 
   LICENSEE: _______________________________ 
   
 By:    
 Name:   
 Title:   
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF ___________ § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the ____ day of ________ ,20__, by Kent 
Cagle, City Manager for the City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of the City. 
 
             
      Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF ___________ § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the ____ day ______of , 20__, by 
______________, _____________ of the ____________, on behalf of said entity. 
       
             
      Notary Public - State of Texas 





Allied World National Assurance Company   10690-001

Ironshore Specialty Insurance Company     25445-091

877-945-7378 888-467-2378
certificates@willis.com

Willis of Florida, Inc.
c/o 26 Century Blvd.
P. O. Box 305191
Nashville, TN  37230-5191

805 Las Cimas Parkway, Suite 350
Austin, TX  78746

X

X

X

  2,000,000

    100,000

      5,000

  2,000,000

  4,000,000

  4,000,000

A 03083986 6/1/2013 6/1/2018

$10,000,000 per Occurrence         
$10,000,000 aggregage              

Excess UmbrellaB 001687100 6/1/2013 6/1/2018

Certificate Holder is an Additional Insured as required by written contract.

Travisso, LTD

03/20/2014Page 1 of 1

21291135

Leander, TX  78641
P.O. Box 319
Attention:  City Manager
City of Leander

Coll:4366886 Tpl:1778477 Cert:21291135

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

PRODUCER

INSURED

INSR ADD’L SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIMITSLTR INSRD WVD (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

GENERAL LIABILITY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS  LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY Y / N

N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach Acord 101, Additonal Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CONTACT
NAME:
PHONE FAX
(A/C, NO, EXT): (A/C, NO):
E−MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S)AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A:

INSURER B:

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY $PREMISES (Ea occurence)

CLAIMS−MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

GEN’L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $
PRO-

POLICY LOCJECT $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY(Per person) $

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY(Per accident) $

NON-OWNED
AUTOS

PROPERTY DAMAGE
$(Per accident)

$

EACH OCCURRENCEOCCUR

CLAIMS−MADE AGGREGATE

$

$

DED $RETENTION $
WC STATU- OTH-

TORY LIMITS ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE  EXPIRATION  DATE  THEREOF,   NOTICE  WILL  BE  DELIVERED  IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies)must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
© 1988−2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE



AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 17, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 13-Z-028: Consider action on the rezoning of several 

tracts of land located at 2680 CR 268, 17851 Ronald W. Reagan, 
generally located north of Hero Way, West of Ronald Reagan 
Blvd. & south of San Gabriel; Legal Description AW0125 
Chambers, T. Sur. 197.55 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels 
#R098020, R031606, R473799, R473798, R473797, R333713, 
R031617, R031607. Currently, the property is zoned GC-3-C 
(General Commercial), Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban) 
and Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural). The property is 
proposed to be zoned PUD (Planned Unit Development), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Blake J. Magee on behalf of Palmera Ridge 

Development, Inc. and MP52, LLC. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of staff recommendations 
with the correction to the staff recommendation to include the 
SFL-2-A at the March 27, 2014.  The City Council unanimously 
approved the Planning & Zoning Commission recommendation at 
the April 03, 2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.  Proposed PUD 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6.   Ordinance 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director 04/04/2014 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 13-Z-028 
PALMERA RIDGE PUD 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Palmer Ridge Development, Inc. and MP52, LLC 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) 
 Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban)  
 GC-3-C (General Commercial).   
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property includes 2680 CR 268 and 17851 Ronald W. Reagan Blvd, 

and is generally located north of Hero Way, West of Ronald W. Reagan 
Blvd. & south of San Gabriel.  The property is approximately 197.55 acres 
in size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH OCL Undeveloped Properties in the ETJ 

EAST SFR-2-B 
Interim SFS-2-B 

Single-Family Neighborhood under construction 
Established Single-Family Homes  

SOUTH OCL Established Single-Family Homes & Undeveloped Properties 

WEST OCL Established Single-Family Homes & Undeveloped Properties 
        

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  This integrated project will 
include a blend of single-family, multi-family, and commercial development.  The intent of 
this zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with 
adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the 
region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a mixed residential community that includes multi-family and commercial 
development located along Ronald W. Reagan Blvd.  The majority of this property is currently 
subject to a voluntary annexation.  This process will run concurrently with the rezoning request.  
The proposal includes residential lot widths ranging from as narrow as forty (40’) feet to over 
seventy (70’) feet wide.  The applicant has incorporated the mixture of residential districts in a 
well integrated neighborhood plan providing a variety of lot sizes within the same neighborhood.    
 
The PUD proposal includes two categories of land use:  Mixed Use and Single Family.  The 
Mixed Use category permits the development of uses listed in the MF-2-B (Multi-Family) and 
GC-3-C (General Commercial) zoning districts.  The development agreement approved by the 
City Council limits the size of the mixed use area to fifteen acres, but not less than eleven acres. 
 
The proposed MF-2-B district would permit a density of 18 units per acre and require that 35% 
of the units have garages.  The Type B architectural component requires that 85% of the first 
story walls are masonry and the 50% of the overall structure is masonry.  The proposed GC-3-C 
is consistent with the current commercial zoning on the property.  The proposed Type 3 site 



Attachment # 1                 

 

component associated with the GC use component permits the use of the outdoor site area for 
outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and storage or accessory buildings.   Permitted 
outdoor uses include: 
 Outdoor Display (limited 30% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Storage (limited 20% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Fuel Sales 
 Overhead Commercial Doors  
 Drive-Through Lanes (also permitted in Type 2) 

The Type C architectural component requires that 60% of the street facing walls are masonry and 
the 35% of the overall structure is masonry. 
 
The table below identifies the proposed residential zoning districts,  lot sizes, and allowed 
percent for the residential portion of this project.  The primary difference between the proposed 
lot size is the SFL-2-A district.  The ordinance currently requires the lot width to be 41 feet and 
the minimum lot size to be 4100 square feet.  The approved development agreement limits the 
overall density of the residential portion of this project to 600 units. 
 

Use Lot 
Width 

Minimum 
Lot Area 

Living 
Area SF Total Lots Allowed 

Percent 
SINGLE-FAMILY 
Single-Family Limited (SFL-2-A) 40’ 3500* 1000 46 8% max 
Single-Family Compact (SFC-2-A) 50’ 5500 1100 229 38% max 
Single-Family Urban (SFU-2-A) 60’ 7200 1200 200 33% min 
Single Family Suburban (SFS-2-A) 70’ 9000 1500 125 21% min 

* Proposed SFL-2-A maybe developed under a site plan, in which case lot area would be 
building area. 

 
Proposed Variations from the Composite Zoning Ordinance and/or Subdivision Ordinance: 

1. Development of a single tier of lots adjacent to the collector roads.  Currently, the 
Subdivision Ordinance requires that all residential blocks are designed to accommodate 
two tiers of lots. 

2. Removal of the required vehicular connection to the west. 
3. Lots that are developed with the SFL use component will not be required to have frontage 

on a street with ROW of 56 feet or greater and a pavements width of 36 feet  or greater 
unless access to garages are from an alley. 

 
Additional Standards Not Required by the Composite Zoning Ordinance: 

1. Construction of a six (6’) foot decorative wall along the collector streets of  the project. 
2. Construction of a native landscaping in the wet pond at the entry of the subdivision off of 

Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. 
3. Use of the Type A architectural component on the residential portion of the project.  All 

street facing sides of the homes backing up to or siding on the collector roads will be 
100% masonry. 

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD with the following conditions: 

1. The proposed base zoning district for the mixed use category is changes from the GC-3-C 
to GC-3-B.   

2. The street connection to the west is provided. 
3. All lots that are proposed to front on the street to the west of the SFL-2-A lot (currently 

called Blue Lagoon on the Concept Plan) shall have garage access from a rear alley. 
 

The proposed PUD promotes more flexibility with the location of the single-family districts and 
incorporates a mixture of multi-family and commercial uses along Ronald W. Reagan Blvd.  
This application effectively utilizes composite zoning to incorporate a variety of land uses while 
maintaining high form standards.  The requested PUD meets the intent statements of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 



REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA RIDGE 2B

2B

2B

HERO WAY

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

BA
KE

R 
LN

CR 264

BRADLEY RANCH RD

CR 274MI
KE

S W
AY

AIRPORT DR

JENNIFER LN

CH
RIS

TO
PH

ER
 LN

WINDING OAK TRL

HAWKINS DR

CREEKVIEW CIR

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 800
Feet

ZONING CASE 13-Z-028
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Palmera Ridge PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



HERO WAY RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 264

CR 274

AIRPORT DR

WINDING OAK TRL

CREEKVIEW CIR

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 13-Z-028 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Palmera Ridge PUD



0 75 150

Scale: 1”= 150’

PHARIS DESIGN
PLANNING   LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

Exhibit B:  Palmera Ridge Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan
March 26, 2014

Hanna & Magee, L.P.

SFL lot

Future Access Point to 
East San Gabriel Parkway

Mixed Use
  3.61 Ac

Wet
Pond

R
O

N
A

L
D

  
 R

E
A

G
A

N
  
 B

L
V

D
  
(
R

O
W

  
 V

A
R

I E
S

)

A i rpo r t D r i ve

Mixed Use
  8.26 Ac

Amenities 
Center + Pool

Linear 
Park

NOTES:
1.  The base zoning district for the project shall be all Zoning 
Categories listed to the left in Table A and Table B (gathered 
from the City of Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance).  The 
standards of the Composite Zoning Ordinance will apply 
unless otherwise described in the following notes;

2.  PUD area = 197.55 acres

3.  Lot width distribution shall be in accordance with Table B, 
this sheet.

4.  This will be a single family residential, commercial, and 
multi-family development.

5.  Greenbelts and Parks will be provided in accordance with 
the approved concept plan.

6.  Parkland dedication for the development was satisfied 
through a Development Agreement between Palmera Ridge 
Development, Inc. and the City of Leander, Texas.

7.  The development will contain a minimum of 20 acres 
parkland, amenity center, and natural open space.

8.  A 6’ decorative rock wall will be built along either side of all 
collector streets within a 25’ landscaped parkway.

9.  Over 1 mile of pedestrian trails will be built within the 
development.

10.  A native landscaped wet pond will be constructed at the 
main entry off of Ronald Reagan Blvd.

11.  All single family homes will be constructed to “Type A” 
Architectural Standards as defined by the City of Leander.

12.  No homes will front on the collector road and all street 
facing sides of the homes backing or siding on the collector 
roads will be 100% masonry.

13.  A Single Tier of lots will be allowed along all collector 
streets identified on the PUD Land Use Plan.

14.  No Vehicular connection is required to be provided along 
the western property boundary to any adjacent bordering 
parcel of land.

15.  The development agreement between the City of Leander 
and Palmera Ridge Development, Inc. regarding the 
Development  applies to this PUD.

16.  Lots that are developed as SFL and have frontage on a 
street are not required to have a ROW of 56’ or greater and 
pavement width of 36’ or greater.  A standard ROW of 50’ with 
a pavement width of 25’ will be acceptable for frontage on SFL 
lots.

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

Linear 
Park

Greenbelt
Natural Area

Pocket
Park

Trail

Collector Street

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

C
ollector Street

Mid Block
Connection

Future San Gabrie
l P

arkway

Mid Block
Connection

This plan is conceptual.  The street layout and 
standards have not been reviewed by staff.  The 
subdivision ordinance and Transportation Criteria 
Manual regulations apply unless otherwise noted in 
the development agreement or PUD document.

:  Mixed Use :  Single Family

Park

Legend:

TRAIL







Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING SEVERAL PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM GC-3-C (GENERAL COMMERCIAL), INTERIM SFS-2-B 
(SINGLE-FAMILY SUBURBAN), AND INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-
FAMILY RURAL) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 197.55 acres, more or less, located 
in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, generally 
located on the north of Hero Way, west of Ronald W. Reagan Blvd, and south of San Gabriel 
Pkwy; legally described as Part of Lot 7, Kittie Hill Acres and 195.649 acres more or less out of the 
T. Chambers Survey, more particularly described in Document Numbers 2013115345 and 
2014001362, Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax 
identification numbers R098020, R031606, R473799, R473798, R473797, R333713, R031617, 
and R031607.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from GC-3-C (General Commercial), Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family 
Suburban) and Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
known as the Palmera Ridge PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in accordance 
with this Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibit “B”, which are hereby adopted and 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning Ordinance to the extent not 
amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
and the requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, this Ordinance shall control.   
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



PALMERA RIDGE 2B

2B

2B

HERO WAY

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 264

CR 274

AIRPO
RT D

R

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

WINDING OAK TRL

CREEKVIEW CIR

HA
W

KI
NS

 D
R

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

EXHIBIT A
Zoning Case
13-Z-028
Palmera Ridge PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



0 75 150

Scale: 1”= 150’

PHARIS DESIGN
PLANNING   LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

Exhibit B:  Palmera Ridge Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan
April 10, 2014

Hanna & Magee, L.P.

B

Future Access Point to 
East San Gabriel Parkway

Mixed Use
  3.61 Ac

Wet
Pond

R
O

N
A

L
D

  
 R

E
A

G
A

N
  
 B

L
V

D
  
(
R

O
W

  
 V

A
R

I E
S

)

A i rpo r t D r i ve

Mixed Use
  8.26 Ac

Amenities 
Center + Pool

Linear 
Park

NOTES:
1.  The base zoning district for the project shall be all Zoning 
Categories listed to the left in Table A and Table B (gathered 
from the City of Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance).  The 
standards of the Composite Zoning Ordinance will apply 
unless otherwise described in the following notes;

2.  PUD area = 197.55 acres

3.  Lot width distribution shall be in accordance with Table B, 
this sheet.

4.  This will be a single family residential, commercial, and 
multi-family development.

5.  Greenbelts and Parks will be provided in accordance with 
the approved concept plan.

6.  Parkland dedication for the development was satisfied 
through a Development Agreement between Palmera Ridge 
Development, Inc. and the City of Leander, Texas.

7.  The development will contain a minimum of 20 acres 
parkland, amenity center, and natural open space.

8.  A 6’ decorative rock wall will be built along either side of all 
collector streets within a 25’ landscaped parkway.

9.  Over 1 mile of pedestrian trails will be built within the 
development.

10.  A native landscaped wet pond will be constructed at the 
main entry off of Ronald Reagan Blvd.

11.  All single family homes will be constructed to “Type A” 
Architectural Standards as defined by the City of Leander.

12.  No homes will front on the collector road and all street 
facing sides of the homes backing or siding on the collector 
roads will be 100% masonry.

13.  A Single Tier of lots will be allowed along all collector 
streets identified on the PUD Land Use Plan.

14.  All lots that are proposed to front on the street to the west 
of the SFL-2-A lot (currently called Blue Lagoon on the Concept 
Plan) shall have garage access from a rear alley.

15.  The development agreement between the City of Leander 
and Palmera Ridge Development, Inc. regarding the 
Development  applies to this PUD.

16.  Lots that are developed as SFL and have frontage on a 
street are not required to have a ROW of 56’ or greater and 
pavement width of 36’ or greater.  A standard ROW of 50’ with 
a pavement width of 25’ will be acceptable for frontage on SFL 
lots.

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

Linear 
Park

Greenbelt
Natural Area

Pocket
Park

Trail

Collector Street

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

C
ollector Street

Future San Gabrie
l P

arkway

This plan is conceptual.  The street layout and 
standards have not been reviewed by staff.  The 
subdivision ordinance and Transportation Criteria 
Manual regulations apply unless otherwise noted in 
the development agreement or PUD document.

:  Mixed Use :  Single Family

Park

Future ROW 
connection
to the West

Legend:

TRAIL

SFC / SFU / SFS 
LOT

SFC / SFU / SFS 
LOT

SFC / SFU / SFS 
LOT

SFL LOT



AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 17, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case #14-Z-005: Consider action on the rezoning of a tract 

of land located at 1001 Horizon Park Blvd; 5.69 acres more or 
less;WCAD Parcel #R036572. Currently, the property is zoned 
SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban / Manufactured Home). The 
property isproposed to be zoned TF-2-B (Two-Family), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Michael and Theresa Kopecky on behalf of Willie and 

Sue A. Kopecky.  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the request at the March 
27, 2014 meeting.  The City Council unanimously approved the 
Planning & Zoning Commission recommendation at the April 3, 
2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map  
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.   Letter of Intent 
 5.   Ordinance 
 6.   Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission March 27, 2014 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director 04/03/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-005 

Texas Village 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Willie and Sue A. Kopecky. 
 
Current Zoning: SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) 
    
Proposed Zoning: TF-2-B (Two-Family) 
 
Size and Location: The property is at 1001 Horizon Park Blvd and is approximately 5.77 

acres in size.   
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

EAST SFU-2-B Developed Single Family Homes: Oak Ridge Sec. 2 

SOUTH SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

WEST HC-4-D Developed Commercial Property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

USE COMPONENTS:   
TF – TWO-FAMILY:   

Features:  9,000 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. for s.f. home, 900 sq. ft. per unit for 2 - family. 
Intent:  Development of two-family dwelling structures on intermediate sized lots and for other 

uses that are compatible and complimentary to intermediate sized lots and two-family 
dwellings. Such components are generally intended to provide an orderly transition and serve 
as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more intensive uses and to create more 
variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods.  The goal is to avoid 
more than ten acres of contiguous land having a two-family component. This component 
should include or be located within six hundred feet of parkland or other recreational open 
space.  To avoid street congestion due to additional on-street parking, access to lots shall be 
provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56) feet or greater and a pavement width of 
thirty-six (36) feet or greater unless lots average at least one hundred feet in width or unless 
garage access is from an alley. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   



Attachment # 1                 

 

(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 
meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 

 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The property is presently zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family/Manufactured Home) district, and 
the applicant is requesting to rezone the property to TF-2-B (Two-Family) district.  Immediately 
north of this property is a SFU/MH-2-B district with a developed single family home, and the 
property to the east is zoned as SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) district and is the developed 
Oak Ridge Section 2 residential subdivision. The southern property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B 
(Single Family Urban / Manufactured Home), and is developed with a single family home. The 
property to the west is zoned HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) and is a developed commercial 
property. 
 
The intent of the TF use component is to serve as a buffer between larger lot subdivisions and 
more intensive land uses. The goal is to create more variety in housing, while seeking to avoid 
creating a zoning district including TF use component larger than 10 acres.  Additionally, access 
to TF-2-B zoned property should be provided by a street with a ROW dedication of 56 feet or 
greater, and 36 six feet of pavement. The intent statement goes on to note that the TF-2-B district 
should be within 600 feet of park or other recreation open space.  The TF use component 
requires a minimum of one enclosed garage parking space and two additional off street parking 
spaces. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant’s request meets several of the intent statements for the TF-2-B district.  It would 
provide a buffer between existing single family developments to the east and buffer more 
intensive commercial developments immediately to the west.  The property is approximately five 
and three quarter acres, and avoids forming a 10 acre contiguous tract of TF-2-B zoning.  
Additionally, staff anticipates at the time of development that the applicant’s request to the TF-2-



Attachment # 1                 

 

B district will meet the remaining intent statements regarding the TF-2-B project be located on a 
street with 36 feet of pavement, and located within 600 feet of a park or open recreation space.  
The intent statement grants an exception to the 36 feet of pavement requirement, if the minimum 
lot widths are set at 100 feet or if garage access is from an alley. The Staff recommends approval 
of this request, as the proposed request does satisfy the majority of the intent statements outlined 
in the composite zoning ordinance.   
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
PLANNING ANALYSIS  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-005 

Texas Village 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Willie and Sue A. Kopecky. 
 
Current Zoning: SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) 
    
Proposed Zoning: TF-2-B (Two-Family) 
 
Size and Location: The property is at 1001 Horizon Park Blvd and is approximately 5.77 

acres in size.   
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

EAST SFU-2-B Developed Single Family Homes: Oak Ridge Sec. 2 

SOUTH SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

WEST HC-4-D Developed Commercial Property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

USE COMPONENTS:   
TF – TWO-FAMILY:   

Features:  9,000 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. for s.f. home, 900 sq. ft. per unit for 2 - family. 
Intent:  Development of two-family dwelling structures on intermediate sized lots and for other 

uses that are compatible and complimentary to intermediate sized lots and two-family 
dwellings. Such components are generally intended to provide an orderly transition and serve 
as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more intensive uses and to create more 
variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods.  The goal is to avoid 
more than ten acres of contiguous land having a two-family component. This component 
should include or be located within six hundred feet of parkland or other recreational open 
space.  To avoid street congestion due to additional on-street parking, access to lots shall be 
provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56) feet or greater and a pavement width of 
thirty-six (36) feet or greater unless lots average at least one hundred feet in width or unless 
garage access is from an alley. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   



Attachment # 1                 

 

(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 
meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 

 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The property is presently zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family/Manufactured Home) district, and 
the applicant is requesting to rezone the property to TF-2-B (Two-Family) district.  Immediately 
north of this property is a SFU/MH-2-B district with a developed single family home, and the 
property to the east is zoned as SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) district and is the developed 
Oak Ridge Section 2 residential subdivision. The southern property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B 
(Single Family Urban / Manufactured Home), and is developed with a single family home. The 
property to the west is zoned HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) and is a developed commercial 
property. 
 
The intent of the TF use component is to serve as a buffer between larger lot subdivisions and 
more intensive land uses. The goal is to create more variety in housing, while seeking to avoid 
creating a zoning district including TF use component larger than 10 acres.  Additionally, access 
to TF-2-B zoned property should be provided by a street with a ROW dedication of 56 feet or 
greater, and 36 six feet of pavement. The intent statement goes on to note that the TF-2-B district 
should be within 600 feet of park or other recreation open space.  The TF use component 
requires a minimum of one enclosed garage parking space and two additional off street parking 
spaces. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant’s request meets several of the intent statements for the TF-2-B district.  It would 
provide a buffer between existing single family developments to the east and buffer more 
intensive commercial developments immediately to the west.  The property is approximately five 
and three quarter acres, and avoids forming a 10 acre contiguous tract of TF-2-B zoning.  
Additionally, staff anticipates at the time of development that the applicant’s request to the TF-2-



Attachment # 1                 

 

B district will meet the remaining intent statements regarding the TF-2-B project be located on a 
street with 36 feet of pavement, and located within 600 feet of a park or open recreation space.  
The intent statement grants an exception to the 36 feet of pavement requirement, if the minimum 
lot widths are set at 100 feet or if garage access is from an alley. The Staff recommends approval 
of this request, as the proposed request does satisfy the majority of the intent statements outlined 
in the composite zoning ordinance.   
 



ATKIN ADDITION

LEANDER CROSSING

LEANDER CROSSING

OVERLOOK ESTATES

RIDGEWOODNORTH

OAKRIDGE,SEC4

OAKRIDGE,SEC3

OAKRIDGE,SEC2

OAKRIDGE,SEC1

ALLENREEDACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LEANDER
MS

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

5D

5D

4C

4C

4C

4C

4C

4C

S U
S 

18
3

LE
AN

DE
R 

DR

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

HILLTOP DR

LA
UR

EL
 G

LE
N 

BL
VD

HAZELWOOD ST

MEADOW VIEW DR

RIDGE VIEW DR

E SONNY DR

SCENIC PATH

TA
NG

LE
W

OO
D 

DR

THRUSH DR

SPRING BROOK LN

WO
OD

VIE
W 

DR

WI
LL

OW
 C

RE
EK

 D
R

MOUNTAIN RIDGE DR

OVERLOOK BND

SHEILA DR

SONNY DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-005
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Texas Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

Municipal Dr



OVERLOOK ESTATES

OAKRIDGE,SEC3

OAKRIDGE,SEC2

OAKRIDGE,SEC1

ALLENREEDACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LE
AN

DE
R 

DR

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

HAZELWOOD ST

SCENIC PATH

TA
NG

LE
WO

OD
 D

R

HILLTOP DR

THRUSH DR

OVERLOOK BND

MEADOW VIEW DR

RIDGE VIEW DR

LA
UR

EL
 G

LE
N B

LV
D

SPRING BROOK LN

E SONNY DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-005 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Texas Village

S WEST DR



msiwek
Typewritten Text

msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 4



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING ONE PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
SFU/MH-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN/MANUFACTURED HOME) TO 
TF-2-B (TWO-FAMILY); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 5.69 acres, more or less, 
located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, 
commonly referred to as 1001 Horizon Park Blvd, Leander, Texas; legally described as Lots 29 
and 30, Block B, Leander Heights, Section 3, more particularly described in Document Number 
2005055146 of the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax 
identification number R036572.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) to TF-2-B 
(Two-Family).   
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



OVERLOOK ESTATES

OAKRIDGE,SEC3

OAKRIDGE,SEC2

OAKRIDGE,SEC1

ALLENREEDACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

5D

LE
AN

DE
R 

DR

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

HAZELWOOD ST

HILLTOP DR

SCENIC PATH

TA
NG

LE
W

OO
D 

DR

THRUSH DR

OVERLOOK BND

MEADOW VIEW DR

LA
UR

EL
 G

LE
N 

BL
VD

SPRING BROOK LN

RIDGE VIEW DR

E SONNY DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

EXHIBIT A
Zoning Case
14-Z-005
Texas Village
1001 Horizon Park Blvd

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

April 17, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Second Reading of an Ordinance Extending the Term of a 
Franchise Granted to Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. to Provide Recycling And Solid Waste 
Collection And Disposal Services Within The City Of Leander. 
 
Background: On February 6, 2014, City Council considered the request from Al 
Clawson Disposal to approve a five-year extension to its current contract with the City;  
approve rate increases (first since 2008) and approve the use of 95 gallon containers for 
recycling services every other week.   At the March 20, 2014 regular meeting, City 
Council approved amending the current rate ordinance to reflect those changes.  
Residential rates would increase from $12.25 per month (before tax) to $16.66.  
Commercial container rates are unchanged.  The City Charter requires published notice 
of a public hearing and two readings of any ordinance granting a franchise.  The public 
hearing and the first reading were conducted on April 13, 2014.   
 
Origination: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration: Residential rates, including the increase for recycling, will go 
up by 36%.  Commercial cart rates will go up by 36% and other commercial rates will 
remain essentially unchanged.  The method of calculating fees for roll-offs will be 
changed from a single rate to a haul charge plus the disposal cost.  This method will 
benefit those with loose, light loads since the disposal fee is based on weight.  City 
Franchise fees will increase proportional to the rate increase and result in additional 
revenue of approximately $51,000. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 
Attachments: Ordinance 
 
Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING THE TERM OF A FRANCHISE 
GRANTED TO AL CLAWSON DISPOSAL, INC. TO PROVIDE 
RECYCLING AND SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 
SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF LEANDER; UNDER ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 11-007-00; AND MAKING OTHER PROVISIONS 

                                                                                                                                       
 
 WHEREAS, Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. ("Company") operates a recycling, solid waste 
collection and disposal service;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leander (“City”) granted the Company a 
franchise to provide recycling and solid waste collection and disposal services within the City 
under Ordinance Number 11-007-00 (the “Franchise”) for a five year term;  
 
 WHEREAS, under Section 3 of the Franchise, the Council may extend the term of the 
Franchise for increments of  one or more years for up to a five years; 
 

WHEREAS, Company has provided recycling, solid waste collection and disposal 
services in a good and satisfactory manner; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council finds that an extension of the Contract is in the best interest of 
the public and provides for good and acceptable services within the City at reasonable costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the public interest of the for the City to extend to term of the 
Franchise for an additional five year term;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1.  Term Extended.  The term of the Franchise is hereby extended for an additional 
five years, which additional five year term shall commence on the fifth anniversary of the 
effective date of the Franchise in Ordinance Number 11-007-00, which is January 20, 2016.  The 
Franchise shall be subject to the terms and conditions set forth in Ordinance Number 11-007-00, 
which are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance was passed was held after a public hearing on the subject of this Franchise, 
and said meeting was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government 
Code. 



 

 

 
Section 3.  Endorsements and Records. The City Secretary is directed to make 
endorsements as appropriate over her/his official hand and the seal of the City on the form 
provided at the conclusion of this Franchise, for the public record and convenience of the 
citizens, of the date upon which this Franchise is finally passed and adopted and, if the Company 
accepts the Franchise, the date of such acceptance. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first reading this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
PASSED AND APPROVED on second reading this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
                      
 
      _________________________ 
      Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
_______________________________ 
Paige Saenz, City Attorney 
 
 

Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. accepted the foregoing Franchise extension by written 
instrument filed on the ____ day of _______________, 20_____. 

 
 ______________________________ 
 Debbie Haile 
 City Secretary 



AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

April 17, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Authorize Amendment to Contract for Solid Waste 
Collection, Disposal and Recycling Services with Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. 
  
Background:On February 6, 2014, City Council considered the request from Al Clawson 
Disposal to approve a five-year extension to its current contract with the City;  approve 
rate increases (first since 2008) and approve the use of 95 gallon containers for recycling 
services every other week.   At the March 20, 2014 regular meeting, City Council 
approved amending the current rate ordinance to reflect those changes.  Residential rates 
would increase from $12.25 per month (before tax) to $16.66.  Commercial container 
rates are unchanged.  The City Charter requires published notice of a public hearing and 
two readings of any ordinance granting a franchise.  The public hearing and first reading 
were conducted on April 3, 2014.  At the conclusion of the second reading, the contract 
amendment with Al Clawson Disposal will be ready for consideration and final action. 
 
Origination:Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration: Residential rates, including the increase for recycling, will go 
up by 36%.  Commercial cart rates will go up by 36% and other commercial rates will 
remain essentially unchanged.  The method of calculating fees for roll-offs will be 
changed from a single rate to a haul charge plus the disposal cost.  This method will 
benefit those with loose, light loads since the disposal fee is based on weight.  City 
Franchise fees will increase proportional to the rate increase and result in additional 
revenue of approximately $51,000. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 
Attachments: Contract 
 
Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT FOR SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL  
AND COLLECTION SERVICES 

 
 This Amendment to Contract for Solid Waste Disposal and Collection Services (the 
“Amendment”), is made and entered into this the ___ day of April, 2014, by and between the 
City of Leander, Texas, a municipal corporation in Williamson County, Texas (hereinafter 
called the “City”) and Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. (hereinafter called the “Contractor”).  The 
City and the Contractor are hereinafter referred to together as the “parties”.  
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties entered that certain Contract for Solid Waste Disposal and 
Collection Services dated January 20, 2011 (the “Contract”), and Contractor provided solid 
waste disposal services within the City under a franchise and contract prior to the Contract; 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor has not raised its rates since 2008; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to section 12.02(b) of the Contract, the Contractor petitioned 
the City for additional rate and price adjustments to respond to increases in the cost of 
doing business since 2008 and to make significant investments in expanding service 
delivery to its customers; 
 

WHEREAS, the Contract has a term of five (5) years beginning February 1, 2011, and 
under its terms, the Contract may be extended for an additional term or terms not to 
exceed a total of five (5) years; 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor has provided Services in a good and satisfactory manner; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council finds that an extension of the Contract and an increase in and 
adjustment in the rates as set forth in this Amendment are in the best interest of the public 
and provides for good and acceptable services within the City at reasonable costs; 
 
 WHEREAS, after notice and public hearing, the City Council approved a five-year 
extension of Contractor’s franchise; 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties wish to provide for a five year extension of the Contract, 
pursuant to Section 10.00 of the General Specifications of the Contract; 
 
 WHEREAS, the approval of this Amendment is authorized by state law, and by 
franchise granted to Contractor in compliance with the City Charter; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following mutual agreements and 
covenants, it is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows: 
 

1. Appendix No. 1 to the Contract shall be amended in its entirety to read as set forth in 
Appendix No. 1 to this Amendment.  The rates, fees and charges payable to the 



Contractor for the recycling, collection, and disposal of refuse and materials, and the 
Contractor’s services pursuant to the Contract and this Amendment shall be as 
provided in Appendix No. 1 to this Amendment.  Appendix No. 1 shall be effective 
for the services provided under the Contract and this Amendment that are billed 
under the bills that are issued by the City on and after May 1, 2014.   
 

2. The Contract is hereby extended for a five-year term, beginning on February 1, 
2016.   

 
3. The Contract is amended only to the extent specifically provided by this 

Amendment, and all other provisions of the Contract shall be and remain in full 
force and effect. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we, the contracting parties, by our fully authorized agents, 
hereto affix our signatures and seals at Leander, Texas as of this the ___ day of March, 
2014. 
 
        City of Leander 
 
       
        By:____________________________________ 
        Name:  Christopher Fielder 
        Title:  Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
By:________________________________________ 
Name:  Debbie Haile 
Title:  City Secretary 
 
 
        Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. 
 
 
 
        By:____________________________________ 
        Name:_________________________________ 
        Title:__________________________________ 
 
  



Appendix No. 1 
RATES FOR RECYCLING, COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 

REFUSE FOR THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 

Residential Unit Curbside Refuse Collection and Recycling  
 

Contractor will provide curbside recycling and collection service of residential refuse and waste to each 
Residential Unit as follows:  Refuse Collection – One time per week [one 95 gallon cart] and Recycling* 
Collection – every other week [one 95 gallon cart] $16.66**].  This service and price includes the curbside 
collection of up to five (5) additional containers, bags and bundles of residential refuse on each 
pickup/service day. 
 
* Recycling includes glass (clear, brown and green), newspaper, tin and aluminum cans, plastics (Number 1 
through  

Number 7), chipboard/cereal boxes. 
 

** Customers age 65 and greater contracting for one cart pickup shall receive a ten percent (10%) discount. 
 

Commercial Refuse Collection 
 

Contractor will provide collection service of Commercial refuse and waste for multi-family dwellings, 
apartment projects, commercial and industrial customers as follows: 
 

(1) Commercial Container Cart Service: 
 

a. One 95 gallon cart once per week:    $20.00 
b. Two 95 gallon carts once per week:  $32.65 
c. One 95 gallon cart twice per week:   $36.33 

 
(2) Front Load Container Service: 

 
Commercial customers producing a volume of refuse garbage and waste in excess of 190 gallons per 
week are asked to select from the following commercial front load containers: 

 
 1X 2X 3X 4X 5X 

2 Yard $   51.60 $   92.15 $ 131.54 $ 170.96 $ 213.71 
3 Yard $   55.20 $   98.57 $ 140.81 $ 182.87 $ 228.59 
4 Yard $   73.20 $ 130.72 $ 186.73 $ 242.51 $ 303.13 
6 Yard $   91.20 $ 162.85 $ 232.64 $ 302.14 $ 377.68 
8 Yard $ 112.80 $ 201.43 $ 287.76 $ 373.72 $ 467.15 

10 Yard $ 132.00 $ 235.72 $ 336.73 $ 437.32 $ 546.65 
 

(3) Commercial Temporary Roll-Off Service: 
 

 20 Yard 30 Yard 40 Yard 
Delivery Fee $ 125.00 $ 125.00 $ 125.00 
Haul Charge $ 225.00 $ 225.00 $ 225.00 

Tonnage 
Fee* 

Williamson 
County Landfill 

Gate Rate 

Williamson 
County Landfill 

Gate Rate 

Williamson 
County Landfill 

Gate Rate 
Daily $ 3.00 per $ 3.00 per $ 3.00 per 



Rental** day day day 
 

  * 3-ton minimum charge 
Note: Current Williamson County Landfill Gate Rate is $36.75/ton 
 

** Daily rental begins after two weeks 
 

 
(4) Commercial Monthly and/or City Roll-Off Service: 

 
 20 Yard 30 Yard 40 Yard 

Delivery Fee N/C N/C N/C 
Haul Charge $ 225.00 $ 225.00 $ 225.00 

Tonnage 
Fee* 

Williamson 
County Landfill 

Gate Rate 

Williamson 
County Landfill 

Gate Rate 

Williamson 
County Landfill 

Gate Rate 
Daily 

Rental** N/C N/C N/C 

 
  * 3-ton minimum charge 

Note: Current Williamson County Landfill Gate Rate is $36.75/ton 
 

(5) Wastewater Sludge Disposal 
 
Haul Charge:  $ 225.00 
 
Disposal Cost:  To be paid by the city at designated disposal facility determined by the city. 
 
 

Special Services and Collections 
 

Tires 
 
Upon verification of payment and receipt for a prepaid charge equal to the landfill rates for disposal charges 
to Contractor, Contractor agrees to pick-up not more than two (2) automobile type tires per residential unit 
per pickup. 
 
Annual Clean-Up 
 
For no charge, the Contractor will, once a year, provide six (6) roll-off containers to be dumped three (3) 
times each.  Location will be designated by the City, Contractor and City will set-up a manned citizen drop-off 
site that accepts refuse, construction material, bulk items (white goods), and brush and other yard waste.  
Also, as part of the cleanup effort, water base or Latex paints will be included.  Batteries and used oil that will 
be accepted at the landfill Contractor uses will be collected..  Materials not accepted at the landfill will not be 
accepted at the clean-up site.  This service is for verified City residents only, and only for the clean-up day. 
 
Bulk, Construction and Stable Material 
 
Contractor will provide for the special collection from residential units on bulky waste not eligible for pickup, 
for a neighborhood cost based on the above rates for dumpster or roll-off containers, as applicable.  
Construction debris and stable material will be hauled at a rated determined by container size.  Contactor and 
producer of the waste will negotiate total  charge prior to collection.  Contractor will not provide for the 
special collection of hazardous waste.  



 
City of Leander Municipal Services Facilities 
 
All City of Leander municipal locations shall be served with either a 95 gallon container or an appropriate 
sized dumpster, at no charge.  If roll-off containers are required for any use, other than the annual clean-up, 
Contractor will provide such services with discounted rates appropriate to the job site and duration.  If the 
City elects to have Contractor haul sludge from the City’s wastewater treatment plant(s), the fee for service 
will be $225.00 per haul, plus disposal costs. 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 17, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Case 13-CP-010:  Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on the Marbella Concept Plan, for 85.28 acres more or less; 
WCAD Parcels R031302, R031303, R031368, R031305, 
R383410, R433132, R432798, R031371, R031370, R031369, and 
R031304 generally located ¾ of a mile east of the intersection of 
Hwy 183A and RM 2243, adjacent to the south side of RM 2243. 
Williamson County, Texas.    

 
Background: This request is the first step in the subdivision process.  Pursuant to 

Section 212.005 of the Texas Local Government Code, approval 
by municipality is required since the concept plan satisfies the 
applicable regulations without requesting any variances that 
require approval of the Planning & Zoning Commission.   

 
Origination: Applicant: Brian Birdwell on behalf of NK Land Investment, LLC, 

Weldon Stephen Walker and Tammy Walker. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the concept plan.  This concept plan 

contains approximately 216 single-family lots and 12.22 acres of 
parkland.  This proposal meets all of the requirements of the 
Subdivision Ordinance.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 
unanimously recommended approval of the concept plan at the 
April 10, 2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.  Concept Plan 
 2. Minutes – Planning & Zoning Commission April 10, 2014  
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director 04/11/2014 



PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 4

P

H

A

S

E

 

2

PHASE 1

PHASE 3

FEMA 100 YR

FLOODWAY

BRUSHY CREEK

MAIN BRANCH

8' TRAIL

FEMA 100 YR

FLOODPLAIN

5

5

'

(C8)

COLLECTOR ROAD

(64' ROW)

 6' WIDE CONCRETE

SIDEWALK

PARKLAND

PHASE II

PARKLAND

PHASE I

PARKLAND

PHASE II

PARKLAND

PHASE IV

R
E

C
O

M
'
D

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

N
O

.

C
L

I
E

N
T

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
H

E
E

T
 
T

I
T

L
E

PROJECT No.

SHEET No.

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
:

 
 
D

R
A

W
N

:
 
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
E

D
:

· 

N
K

 
L
A

N
D

 
I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
,
 
L
L
C

M
A

R
B

E
L
L
A

2276-2-001

E

T
AT

S I NO A L

P
R

L
E S

O
F ECI SN

S

ET
OF

XA

NE

R
ED

G I NE

S

E

DAVID URBAN
82783

2/21/2014

1

M
A

R
B

E
L
L
A

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 
P

L
A

N

0 200 400

ORIGINAL SCALE 1" = 200'

LEGEND

PHASE LINES

PARKLAND

USGS LEANDER 7.5 MIN QUADRANGLE

LOCATION MAP

NTS

SITE

OWNER (2):

STEPHEN AND TAMMY WALKER

8761 RR 2243

LEANDER, TX 78641

OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE:

VISION 360

12809 WOODED LAKE CT

AUSTIN, TX 78732

O:512-394-6022

F: 512-394-6023

CIVIL ENGINEER & SURVEYOR:

BAKER-AICKLEN & ASSOCIATES, INC.

507 W LIBERTY AVENUE

ROUND ROCK, TX 78664

O: 512-244-9620

F: 512-244-9623

LAND PLANNER:

LARSON, BURNS, SMITH

1108 WEST AVE

AUSTIN, TX 78701

O: 512-476-1559

F: 512-476-8128

OWNER (1):

NK LAND INVESTMENTS, LLC.

P.O. BOX 1726

GEORGETOWN, TX 78627

C: 254-220-7499

F: 512-394-6023

DATE PREPARED:

JANUARY 2014

NOTES:

- AT THE TIME OF FINAL PLAT APPLICANT 

WILL PROVIDE A PAYMENT OF $126.00 PER

RESIDENTIAL UNIT.

INGRESS AND EGRESS

EMERGENCY

ACCESS



PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 4

P

H

A

S

E

 

2

PHASE 1

PHASE 3

FEMA 100 YR

FLOODWAY

BRUSHY CREEK

MAIN BRANCH

8' TRAIL

FEMA 100 YR

FLOODPLAIN

5

5

'

(C8)

COLLECTOR ROAD

(64' ROW)

 6' WIDE CONCRETE

SIDEWALK

PARKLAND

PHASE II

PARKLAND

PHASE I

PARKLAND

PHASE II

PARKLAND

PHASE IV

R
E

C
O

M
'
D

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

N
O

.

C
L

I
E

N
T

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
H

E
E

T
 
T

I
T

L
E

PROJECT No.

SHEET No.

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
:

 
 
D

R
A

W
N

:
 
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
E

D
:

· 

N
K

 
L
A

N
D

 
I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
,
 
L
L
C

M
A

R
B

E
L
L
A

2276-2-001

E

T
AT

S I NO A L

P
R

L
E S

O
F ECI SN

S

ET
OF

XA

NE

R
ED

G I NE

S

E

DAVID URBAN
82783

2/21/2014

P
A

R
K

L
A

N
D

 
E

X
H

I
B

I
T

0 200 400

ORIGINAL SCALE 1" = 200'

LEGEND

PHASE LINES

PARKLAND

SLOPES WITHIN PARKLAND

OVER 15% SLOPE

PARKLAND PROPOSED BY SITE AND ESTIMATED VALUE:

-PRIVATE AMENITY -- $450,000.00

-PRIVATE PARK -- $100,000.00

-PUBLIC PARKLAND -- $100,000.00

-PUBLIC TRAIL -- $50,000.00

4.07 ACRES

2.43 ACRES

2.8 ACRES
2.92 ACRES

5

hsloan
Text Box
    2







AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 17, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Case 14-CP-001:  Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on Stewart Crossing Concept Plan, for 66.2 acres more or 
less; WCAD Parcels R433136, R031257, R031259, R031261, 
R031260, R432796, and R432795 generally located 1,000 feet to 
the east of the northeast corner of the intersection of 183A Toll 
Road and E. Woodview Drive Leander, Williamson County Texas.   

 
Background: This request is the first step in the subdivision process.  Pursuant to 

Section 212.005 of the Texas Local Government Code, approval 
by municipality is required since the concept plan satisfies the 
applicable regulations without requesting any variances that 
require approval of the Planning & Zoning Commission.   

 
Origination: Applicant: Jones & Carter, Inc. on behalf BW and Carlene Pruett 

Trust and Samuel, Ida Nell Pearson Family Trust and Samuel and 
Ida Nell Pearson and BW and Carlene Pruett Family Trust. 

Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the concept plan.  This concept plan 

approximately 225 single-family lots and 7.2 acres of parkland.  
This proposal meets all of the requirements of the Subdivision 
Ordinance.  The Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the concept plan at the April 10, 2014 
meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.  Concept Plan 
 2. Minutes – Planning & Zoning Commission April 10, 2014  
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director 04/11/2014 









AGENDA ITEM # 15 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 17, 2014 

 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-006:  Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of several tracts of land located to the west of the 
western terminus of Osage Drive in the Bluffs at Crystal Falls 
Subdivision; Legally described as 13.385 acres more or less out of 
the B.F. Davis Survey 73, the J.H. Harris Survey 96, the I.A. 
Hampton Survey 613, and the Lucinda Carter Survey; TCAD 
Parcel 831299. Currently, the property is zoned SFU-2-B (Single- 
Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), and SFC-2-B 
(Single-Family Compact). The property is proposed to be zoned 
SFU-2-B (Single- Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family 
Suburban), and SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact), Leander, 
Travis County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Sam Kiger on behalf of Taylor Morrison at Crystal 

Falls, LLC. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the request at the April 10, 
2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.   Proposed Zoning Map 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6. Ordinance 
 7. Minutes – Planning & Zoning Commission April 10, 2014  
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director 04/11/2014 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-006 

Bluffs Section 3 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Taylor Morrison at Crystal Falls, LLC. 
 
Current Zoning: SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), 

SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) 
    
Proposed Zoning: SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), 

SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) 
 
Size and Location: The property is located approximately 1,300 feet from the westward 

extension of Osage Dr. 
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFS-2-B 
SFC-2-A 

Undeveloped Residential 
Undeveloped Residential 

EAST 

 
SFS-2-B 
SFC-2-B 

 

Undeveloped Residential 
Undeveloped Residential 

SOUTH SFU -2-B Undeveloped Residential 

WEST PUD Undeveloped Residential 

 
 
 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

      

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

USE COMPONENTS:   
SFS – SINGLE FAMILY SUBURBAN:   
Features:  9,000 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,500 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  Development of single-family detached dwellings on intermediate suburban standard 

sized lots and for other compatible and complimentary uses. The purpose of this component is 
to provide regulations to maintain and protect the City's single-family residences and 
neighborhoods in areas with intermediate lot sizes. 

 
SFU – SINGLE FAMILY URBAN:   
Features:  7,200 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  Development of single-family detached dwellings on moderate urban standard sized lots 

and for other compatible and complimentary uses. The purpose of this component is to provide 
regulations to maintain and protect the City's single-family residences and neighborhoods in 
areas with moderate lot sizes.  Such components are generally intended to offer variety in 
housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods. 

 
SFC – SINGLE FAMILY COMPACT:   
Features:  5,500 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,100 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  Development of single-family detached dwellings on small lots and for other compatible 

and complimentary uses. The purpose of this component is to provide regulations to maintain 
and protect the City's single-family residences and neighborhoods in areas with small lot sizes.  
Such components are generally intended to offer variety in housing opportunities and in the 
fabric of the neighborhoods, and to be developed on a moderate scale with a maximum district 
size of seventy-five (75) acres. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The property is presently zoned SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family 
Suburban), and SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) districts. The applicant is requesting to adjust 
the zoning boundaries for three tracts of land to coordinate the appropriate lot sizes with their 
subsequent preliminary plat.  
 
The three tracts and corresponding proposed zone change classifications are listed below: 
 An approximate 6.7 acre tract of land from SFU-2-B to SFS-2-B 
 An approximate  5.0 acre tract of land from SFS-2-B to SFU-2-B 
 An approximate 1.6 acre tract of land from SFU-2-B to SFC-2-B 

 
The intent of rezoning the approximate 6.7 acre tract would be to allow for increases in 
minimum lot width, depths, and lot areas, while the intent of rezoning the 5.0 and 1.6 acre tracts 
would reduce the minimum lot widths, depths, and areas. 
 
The following table is a summary of lot widths, depths, and areas for the above listed zoning 
classes. 
 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

Zoning Classification Permitted Lot Widths (ft) Permitted Lot Depths (ft) Permitted Lot Areas (sq. ft.) 
SFS-2-B 70 115 9,000 
SFU-2-B 60 110 7,200 
SFC-2-B 50 105 5,500 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant’s request allows for an equal exchange of acreage for lot size increases and 
reductions.   The proposed rezoning meets the intent of the composite zoning ordinance and 
comprehensive plan.  Staff finds no objection to the applicant’s request, and recommends 
approval for the requested zone change. 
 



FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

2A

3B

2A

2A

2A

2B

2A

2B

2B
2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B 2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B

2B2B
2B

2B 2B2B

2B GOOD NIGHT TRL

MIRADORLA
JIT

AS

OSAGE DR

CO
RA

L V
AL

LE
Y D

R
ZO

A D
R

GR
AN

ITE
 HI

LL
 DR

HILLTOP DIVIDE LN

CRYSTAL FA
LLS PKWY

HIGH LONESOME

PA
SA TIE

MPO

LOOKOUT RANGE DR

HILLTOP CLIMB DR

WAGON WAY

PRESERVE TRL

SHUMARD BLUFF DR

CA
P R

OCK
 LN

YAUPON RANGE DR

LEGEND HILL DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-006
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Bluffs at Crystal Falls Sec. 3

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

Municipal Dr



FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

GR
AN

ITE
 HI

LL 
DR

GOOD NIGHT TRL

SHUMARD BLUFF DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-006 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Bluffs at Crystal Falls Section 3

S WEST DR



FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

2A

3B

2A

2A

2A

2B

2A

2B

2B
2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B 2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B

2B2B
2B

2B 2B2B

2B GOOD NIGHT TRL

MIRADORLA
JIT

AS

OSAGE DR

CO
RA

L V
AL

LE
Y D

R
ZO

A D
R

GR
AN

ITE
 HI

LL
 DR

HILLTOP DIVIDE LN

CRYSTAL FA
LLS PKWY

HIGH LONESOME

PA
SA TIE

MPO

LOOKOUT RANGE DR

HILLTOP CLIMB DR

WAGON WAY

PRESERVE TRL

SHUMARD BLUFF DR

CA
P R

OCK
 LN

YAUPON RANGE DR

LEGEND HILL DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-006
Attachment #4
Proposed Zoning Map
Bluffs at Crystal Falls Sec. 3

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

Municipal Dr

Proposed SFS-2-B

Proposed SFU-2-B

Proposed SFC-2-B



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING SEVERAL PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM SFU-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN), SFS-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY 
SUBURBAN), AND SFC-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY COMPACT) TO SFU-2-B 
(SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN), SFS-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY SUBURBAN), 
AND SFC-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY COMPACT); MAKING FINDINGS OF 
FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 13.385 acres, more or 
less, located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit 
“A” & “B”, legally described as 13.385 acres more or less out of the B.F. Davis Survey 73, the 
J.H. Harris Survey 96, the I.A. Hampton Survey 613, and the Lucinda Carter Survey; more 
particularly described in Document Number 2010094028 of the Official Public Records of Travis 
County, Texas, and identified by tax identification number 831299.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family 
Suburban), and SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) to SFU-2-b (Single-Family Urban), SFS-2-B 
(Single-Family Suburban), and SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact); 
 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



















FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

3B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B 2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B

2B2B
2B

2B 2B2B

2B GOOD NIGHT TRL

MIRADORLA
JIT

AS

OSAGE DR

CO
RA

L V
AL

LE
Y D

R
ZO

A D
R

GR
AN

ITE
 HI

LL
 DR

HILLTOP DIVIDE LN

CRYSTAL FA
LLS PKWY

HIGH LONESOME

PA
SA TIE

MPO

LOOKOUT RANGE DR

HILLTOP CLIMB DR

WAGON WAY

PRESERVE TRL

SHUMARD BLUFF DR

CA
P R

OCK
 LN

YAUPON RANGE DR

LEGEND HILL DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

EXHIBIT B
Zoning Case
14-Z-006
Bluffs at Crystal Falls Sec. 3

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

Municipal Dr

Proposed SFS-2-B

Proposed SFU-2-B

Proposed SFC-2-B





AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 

 
Executive Summary 

April 17, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding a proposal to establish a 
Public Improvement District (PID) and a TIRZ development and reimbursement agreement for 
the Oak Creek project. 
  
Background:  The City Council conducted a workshop on December 5, 2013 to discuss public 
improvement districts and the potential to create a PID for two specific projects.  One of those 
projects was the Oak Creek development near the intersection of 183 and San Gabriel Blvd.  
Since that meeting, the Oak Creek project has continued to progress with applications for zoning 
and preliminary plat.  The developers of Oak Creek have also met with staff to discuss their 
proposal to create a PID on the property and to enter an agreement for TIRZ reimbursements for 
certain infrastructure improvements associated with the project. 
 
This agenda item is intended to allow the applicant to present their proposal for the PID and 
TIRZ agreements and for the Council to provide direction to staff prior to the next steps being 
taken to formalize the agreements. 
     
Origination:  Applicant: Sentinel/Cotter Leander, LLC 
 
Recommendation:  This item is for Council direction to staff.   
 
Attachments:  

1. PID and TIRZ proposal 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 3/26/14 













AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 

 
Executive Summary 

April 17, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Discussion and possible action to approve the second amendment to the 
Facilities Agreements for Travis County Municipal Utility Districts 19, 20 and 21.  
  
Background:  The applicant has proposed the second amendment to the facilities agreements to 
allow for the transfer of land among the three Travisso MUDs without the requirement for 
additional consent by the City.  The MUDs would be required to provide notice to the City of 
any transfer of land between the MUDs. 
 
The original agreements were approved July 20, 2012.  The agreements were subsequently 
assigned to Taylor Morrison on December 21, 2012 and then to Travisso, Ltd. on April 12, 2013. 
 
The first amendment to the facilities agreements were approved on November 1, 2012. 
     
Origination:  Applicant: Travisso, LTD (Taylor Morrison Homes of Texas, Inc) 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the amendment.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Second amendment to Facilities Agreement for Travis County MUD No. 19 
2. Second amendment to Facilities Agreement for Travis County MUD No. 20 
3. Second amendment to Facilities Agreement for Travis County MUD No. 21 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 4/9/14 



2075754.2 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO FACILITIES AGREEMENT 
 
 
THE  STATE  OF  TEXAS  § 
     § KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  §  
 
 This Second Amendment to Facilities Agreement (this “Second Amendment”) is 
executed by Travisso, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, (“Owner”), the City of Leander, 
Texas, a home rule municipal corporation (“City”), and Travis County Municipal Utility 
District No. 19, a municipal utility district created and operating pursuant to Article XVI, 
Section 59 of the Texas Constitution and Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code 
(“District”) to be effective as of the date below.  
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. Lookout Partners, L.P., a Texas limited partnership, and Key-Deer Holdings, L.P., 
a Texas limited partnership (collectively, “Original Owners”) and the City have entered into that 
certain Facilities Agreement dated effective on or about July 20, 2012 for the acquisition, 
construction and financing of certain improvements for an approximately 624.20-acre tract in 
Travis County, Texas, which was amended by that certain First Amendment to Facilities 
Agreement dated effective on or about November 1, 2012.  The Facilities Agreement and First 
Amendment to Facilities Agreement are herein referred to as the Agreement. Pursuant to the 
terms of the Agreement, the District joined and executed the Agreement following its creation.  

 
B. Original Owners assigned to Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation,  

and Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc. received from Original Owners, all of Original Owners’ 
rights and obligations under the Agreement pursuant to that certain Assignment of Facilities 
Agreements dated to be effective on December 21, 2012. Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc. 
subsequently assigned all of its rights and obligations under the Agreement to Owner pursuant to 
that certain Assignment of Facilities Agreements dated to be effective on April 12, 2013.  

 
C. The City, the District, and Owner, as successor in interest to Original Owners,  

have agreed to make certain amendments and modifications to the Agreement.  
 

AGREEMENTS: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants and 
agreements of the Parties hereinafter set forth, together with other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Owner, the District 
and the City hereby agree as follows:  
 

1. Defined Terms.  Unless otherwise defined in this Second Amendment or the 
context otherwise requires, each term used in this Second Amendment with its initial letter 
capitalized which has been specifically defined in the Agreement shall have the same meaning 
herein as given to such term in the Agreement. 



2 
2075754.2 

2. Amendment.  The Agreement is amended by addition of the following Section 
3.08 immediately following Section 3.07 of the Agreement: 

 
Section 3.08 Administration of Municipal Utility Districts. 

 
 (a) Subject to the terms of this Section, the City agrees that land may 
be annexed into or excluded from the District without additional consent from the 
City if the land to be annexed or excluded is currently within the Property as 
defined in the Development Agreement (“Travisso”).  Prior to the annexation or 
exclusion of land under this section, the District shall provide written notice to the 
City of its intent to annex or exclude land, together with a legal description of the 
property proposed to be annexed or excluded and the District’s proposed date of 
annexation or exclusion.  The City may object to the proposed annexation or 
exclusion and shall provide written notice of any objection to the District within 
30 days of receipt of the District’s notice.  Upon receipt of the City’s timely 
objection, the District shall be required to obtain the City’s consent to such 
annexation or exclusion.  The City’s failure to timely object to the District’s 
notice shall be deemed the City’s consent to such annexation or exclusion.  
 
 (b) For any annexation of land that is not within the Property and is 
not subject to the Development Agreement, the District shall be required to obtain 
the consent of the City prior to any proposed annexation into the District. 
 
 (c) In the event of an annexation or exclusion of land among the 
Districts within Travisso, the limitation within Section 3.04 shall be increased (or 
decreased) in proportion to the acreage added (or excluded) for each District; 
provided that the total amount of Bonds to be issued by the District, Travis 
County Municipal Utility District No. 20, and Travis County Municipal Utility 
District No. 21 combined shall not exceed $219,012,000.00. 
 
3. Continuing Effect.  Except as expressly modified by the terms and provisions of 

this Second Amendment, each and every of the terms and provisions of the Agreement are 
unchanged and continued in full force and effect. 

 
4. Parties Bound.  This Second Amendment shall be binding upon the parties hereto 

and their respective successors and assigns. 
 

5. Counterparts.  Multiple copies of this Second Amendment may be executed by 
the handwritten signatures of the parties hereto.  Each such executed copy shall have the full 
force and effect of an original executed instrument.  To facilitate the execution of this Second 
Amendment, the parties may execute and exchange by email or facsimile transmission scanned 
or facsimile counterparts of this Second Amendment with handwritten signatures, and such scans 
or facsimiles shall be deemed original and effective for all purposes. 



3 
2075754.2 

 
  
EFFECTIVE as of ___________________, 2014. 
 
 
 



4 
2075754.2 

OWNER: 
 
TRAVISSO, LTD.,  
a Texas limited partnership 
 
By: TMC TRAVISSO GP, LLC,  

a Texas limited liability company,  
its general partner 

 
 
 
 By:       

Name:       

Title:       

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY  OF  TRAVIS § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ________ day of 

________________, 2014, by ____________________________, as ______________________ 

of TMC Travisso GP, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, as general partner of Travisso, 

Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said limited liability company and limited 

partnership. 

 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 

 



5 
2075754.2 

CITY: 
 
The City Of Leander, Texas 
 
 
 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY  OF  __________ § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ________ day of 

__________________, 2014, by ___________________________, as _____________________ 

of The City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of said city. 

 

____________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 



6 
2075754.2 

DISTRICT: 
 
Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 19 
 
 
 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY  OF  __________ § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ________ day of 

__________________, 2014, by ____________________________, ______________________ 

of Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 19, on behalf of said municipal utility district. 

 

____________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 

 



2075753.1 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO FACILITIES AGREEMENT 
 
 
THE  STATE  OF  TEXAS  § 
     § KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  §  
 
 This Second Amendment to Facilities Agreement (this “Second Amendment”) is 
executed by Travisso, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, (“Owner”), the City of Leander, 
Texas, a home rule municipal corporation (“City”), and Travis County Municipal Utility 
District No. 20, a municipal utility district created and operating pursuant to Article XVI, 
Section 59 of the Texas Constitution and Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code 
(“District”) to be effective as of the date below.  
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. Lookout Partners, L.P., a Texas limited partnership, and Key-Deer Holdings, L.P., 
a Texas limited partnership (collectively, “Original Owners”) and the City have entered into that 
certain Facilities Agreement dated effective on or about July 20, 2012 for the acquisition, 
construction and financing of certain improvements for an approximately 754.55-acre tract in 
Travis County, Texas, which was amended by that certain First Amendment to Facilities 
Agreement dated effective on or about November 1, 2012.  The Facilities Agreement and First 
Amendment to Facilities Agreement are herein referred to as the Agreement. Pursuant to the 
terms of the Agreement, the District joined and executed the Agreement following its creation.  

 
B. Original Owners assigned to Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation,  

and Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc. received from Original Owners, all of Original Owners’ 
rights and obligations under the Agreement pursuant to that certain Assignment of Facilities 
Agreements dated to be effective on December 21, 2012. Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc. 
subsequently assigned all of its rights and obligations under the Agreement to Owner pursuant to 
that certain Assignment of Facilities Agreements dated to be effective on April 12, 2013.  

 
C. The City, the District, and Owner, as successor in interest to Original Owners,  

have agreed to make certain amendments and modifications to the Agreement.  
 

AGREEMENTS: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants and 
agreements of the Parties hereinafter set forth, together with other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Owner, the District 
and the City hereby agree as follows:  
 

1. Defined Terms.  Unless otherwise defined in this Second Amendment or the 
context otherwise requires, each term used in this Second Amendment with its initial letter 
capitalized which has been specifically defined in the Agreement shall have the same meaning 
herein as given to such term in the Agreement. 



2 
2075753.1 

2. Amendment.  The Agreement is amended by addition of the following Section 
3.08 immediately following Section 3.07 of the Agreement: 

 
Section 3.08 Administration of Municipal Utility Districts. 

 
 (a) Subject to the terms of this Section, the City agrees that land may 
be annexed into or excluded from the District without additional consent from the 
City if the land to be annexed or excluded is currently within the Property as 
defined in the Development Agreement (“Travisso”).  Prior to the annexation or 
exclusion of land under this section, the District shall provide written notice to the 
City of its intent to annex or exclude land, together with a legal description of the 
property proposed to be annexed or excluded and the District’s proposed date of 
annexation or exclusion.  The City may object to the proposed annexation or 
exclusion and shall provide written notice of any objection to the District within 
30 days of receipt of the District’s notice.  Upon receipt of the City’s timely 
objection, the District shall be required to obtain the City’s consent to such 
annexation or exclusion.  The City’s failure to timely object to the District’s 
notice shall be deemed the City’s consent to such annexation or exclusion.  
 
 (b) For any annexation of land that is not within the Property and is 
not subject to the Development Agreement, the District shall be required to obtain 
the consent of the City prior to any proposed annexation into the District. 
 
 (c) In the event of an annexation or exclusion of land among the 
Districts within Travisso, the limitation within Section 3.04 shall be increased (or 
decreased) in proportion to the acreage added (or excluded) for each District; 
provided that the total amount of Bonds to be issued by the District, Travis 
County Municipal Utility District No. 19, and Travis County Municipal Utility 
District No. 21 combined shall not exceed $219,012,000.00. 
 
3. Continuing Effect.  Except as expressly modified by the terms and provisions of 

this Second Amendment, each and every of the terms and provisions of the Agreement are 
unchanged and continued in full force and effect. 

 
4. Parties Bound.  This Second Amendment shall be binding upon the parties hereto 

and their respective successors and assigns. 
 

5. Counterparts.  Multiple copies of this Second Amendment may be executed by 
the handwritten signatures of the parties hereto.  Each such executed copy shall have the full 
force and effect of an original executed instrument.  To facilitate the execution of this Second 
Amendment, the parties may execute and exchange by email or facsimile transmission scanned 
or facsimile counterparts of this Second Amendment with handwritten signatures, and such scans 
or facsimiles shall be deemed original and effective for all purposes. 



3 
2075753.1 

 
  
EFFECTIVE as of ___________________, 2014. 
 
 
 



4 
2075753.1 

OWNER: 
 
TRAVISSO, LTD.,  
a Texas limited partnership 
 
By: TMC TRAVISSO GP, LLC,  

a Texas limited liability company,  
its general partner 

 
 
 
 By:       

Name:       

Title:       

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY  OF  TRAVIS § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ________ day of 

________________, 2014, by ____________________________, as ______________________ 

of TMC Travisso GP, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, as general partner of Travisso, 

Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said limited liability company and limited 

partnership. 

 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 

 



5 
2075753.1 

CITY: 
 
The City Of Leander, Texas 
 
 
 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY  OF  __________ § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ________ day of 

_____________________, 2014, by _______________________________, _______________ 

of The City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of said city. 

 

____________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 



6 
2075753.1 

DISTRICT: 
 
Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 20 
 
 
 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY  OF  __________ § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ________ day of 

_____________________, 2014, by _______________________________, _______________ 

of Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 20, on behalf of said municipal utility district. 

 

____________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 

 



2075745.2 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO FACILITIES AGREEMENTS 
 
 
THE  STATE  OF  TEXAS  § 
     § KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  §  
 
 This Second Amendment to Facilities Agreement (this “Second Amendment”) is 
executed by Travisso, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, (“Owner”), the City of Leander, 
Texas, a home rule municipal corporation (“City”), and Travis County Municipal Utility 
District No. 21, a municipal utility district created and operating pursuant to Article XVI, 
Section 59 of the Texas Constitution and Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code 
(“District”) to be effective as of the date below.  
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. Lookout Partners, L.P., a Texas limited partnership, and Key-Deer Holdings, L.P., 
a Texas limited partnership (collectively, “Original Owners”) and the City have entered into that 
certain Facilities Agreement dated effective on or about July 20, 2012 for the acquisition, 
construction and financing of certain improvements for an approximately 739.85-acre tract in 
Travis County, Texas, which was amended by that certain First Amendment to Facilities 
Agreement dated effective on or about November 1, 2012.  The Facilities Agreement and First 
Amendment to Facilities Agreement are herein referred to as the Agreement. Pursuant to the 
terms of the Agreement, the District joined and executed the Agreement following its creation.  

 
B. Original Owners assigned to Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation,  

and Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc. received from Original Owners, all of Original Owners’ 
rights and obligations under the Agreement pursuant to that certain Assignment of Facilities 
Agreements dated to be effective on December 21, 2012. Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc. 
subsequently assigned all of its rights and obligations under the Agreement to Owner pursuant to 
that certain Assignment of Facilities Agreements dated to be effective on April 12, 2013.  

 
C. The City, the District, and Owner, as successor in interest to Original Owners,  

have agreed to make certain amendments and modifications to the Agreement.  
 

AGREEMENTS: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants and 
agreements of the Parties hereinafter set forth, together with other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Owner, the District 
and the City hereby agree as follows:  
 

1. Defined Terms.  Unless otherwise defined in this Second Amendment or the 
context otherwise requires, each term used in this Second Amendment with its initial letter 
capitalized which has been specifically defined in the Agreement shall have the same meaning 
herein as given to such term in the Agreement. 



2 
2075745.2 

2. Amendment.  The Agreement is amended by addition of the following Section 
3.08 immediately following Section 3.07 of the Agreement: 

 
Section 3.08 Administration of Municipal Utility Districts. 

 
 (a) Subject to the terms of this Section, the City agrees that land may 
be annexed into or excluded from the District without additional consent from the 
City if the land to be annexed or excluded is currently within the Property as 
defined in the Development Agreement (“Travisso”).  Prior to the annexation or 
exclusion of land under this section, the District shall provide written notice to the 
City of its intent to annex or exclude land, together with a legal description of the 
property proposed to be annexed or excluded and the District’s proposed date of 
annexation or exclusion.  The City may object to the proposed annexation or 
exclusion and shall provide written notice of any objection to the District within 
30 days of receipt of the District’s notice.  Upon receipt of the City’s timely 
objection, the District shall be required to obtain the City’s consent to such 
annexation or exclusion.  The City’s failure to timely object to the District’s 
notice shall be deemed the City’s consent to such annexation or exclusion.  
 
 (b) For any annexation of land that is not within the Property and is 
not subject to the Development Agreement, the District shall be required to obtain 
the consent of the City prior to any proposed annexation into the District. 
 
 (c) In the event of an annexation or exclusion of land among the 
Districts within Travisso, the limitation within Section 3.04 shall be increased (or 
decreased) in proportion to the acreage added (or excluded) for each District; 
provided that the total amount of Bonds to be issued by the District, Travis 
County Municipal Utility District No. 19, and Travis County Municipal Utility 
District No. 20 combined shall not exceed $219,012,000.00. 
 
3. Continuing Effect.  Except as expressly modified by the terms and provisions of 

this Second Amendment, each and every of the terms and provisions of the Agreement are 
unchanged and continued in full force and effect. 

 
4. Parties Bound.  This Second Amendment shall be binding upon the parties hereto 

and their respective successors and assigns. 
 

5. Counterparts.  Multiple copies of this Second Amendment may be executed by 
the handwritten signatures of the parties hereto.  Each such executed copy shall have the full 
force and effect of an original executed instrument.  To facilitate the execution of this Second 
Amendment, the parties may execute and exchange by email or facsimile transmission scanned 
or facsimile counterparts of this Second Amendment with handwritten signatures, and such scans 
or facsimiles shall be deemed original and effective for all purposes. 



3 
2075745.2 

 
  
EFFECTIVE as of ___________________, 2014. 
 
 
 



4 
2075745.2 

OWNER: 
 
TRAVISSO, LTD.,  
a Texas limited partnership 
 
By: TMC TRAVISSO GP, LLC,  

a Texas limited liability company,  
its general partner 

 
 
 
 By:       

Name:       

Title:       

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY  OF  TRAVIS § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ________ day of 

________________, 2014, by ____________________________, as ______________________ 

of TMC Travisso GP, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, as general partner of Travisso, 

Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said limited liability company and limited 

partnership. 

 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 

 



5 
2075745.2 

CITY: 
 
The City Of Leander, Texas 
 
 
 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY  OF  __________ § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ________ day of 

_____________________, 2014, by _______________________________, _______________ 

of The City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of said city. 

 

____________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 



6 
2075745.2 

DISTRICT: 
 
Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 21 
 
 
 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY  OF  __________ § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ________ day of 

_____________________, 2014, by _______________________________, _______________ 

of Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 21, on behalf of said municipal utility district. 

 

____________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 

 
Executive Summary 

April 17, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Discussion and possible action to approve the assignment of the 
Development and Annexation Agreement with RMD Holdings, LP to Ewing Development 
Company, LLC.  
  
Background:  The City Council approved the development and annexation agreement for the 
150.2 acre tract along CR 280 with RMD Holdings, LP on September 19, 2013.  RMD Holdings 
has requested that the agreement be assigned to Ewing Development Company, LLC.  The 
agreement allows for assignment with City Council approval. 
    
Origination:  Applicant: RMD Holdings, LP and Ewing Development Company, LLC 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the assignment.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Letter from RMD Holdings 
2. Assignment of Development and Annexation Agreement 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 4/10/14 



tyantis
Typewritten Text
2013101076























Agenda Item # 21 

 
 

Executive Summary 

April 14, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider a Resolution authorizing the Brushy Creek Regional 
Utility Authority to enter into a Purchase Contract with the Lower Colorado River Authority 
for acquisition of a 1.685 acre pumping station, a 0.802 acre temporary construction 
easement and two subsurface easements totaling 3.554 acres out of a portion of Sandy Creek 
Park  
 
 
Background:  This resolution authorizes the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority to 
enter into a purchase contract with the Lower Colorado River Authority for $415,901.00 for 
acquisition of a 1.685 acres land (Site 8) adjacent to the Cedar Park Water Treatment Plant to 
be used for the Deep Water Intake Pump Station plus a 0.802 acre temporary construction 
easement and two subsurface easements for pressure and gravity tunnels leading to and from 
the Deep Water Intake Pump Station totaling 3.554 acres out of a portion of Sandy Creek 
Park.  This purchase is a major step in fulfilling the terms and intent of the Memorandum of 
Agreement between the BCRUA and the Village of Volente concerning the location of the 
Deep Water Intake and the Deep Water Intake Pump Station. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $415,901.00 from BCRUA Bonds wherein the City of Leander is 
responsible for approximately 46% or $191,315.00, more or less, from the BCRUA Leander 
Series of bonds. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the Resolution. 
   
Attachments:  Resolution and supporting Documents 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 



   

 RESOLUTION NO.  ______________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE 
BRUSHY CREEK REGIONAL UTILITY AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO A 
PURCHASE CONTRACT WITH THE LOWER COLORADO RIVER AUTHORITY 
FOR ACQUISITION OF A 1.685 ACRE PUMPING STATION, A 0.802 ACRE 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, AND TWO SUBSURFACE 
EASEMENTS TOTALLING 3.554 ACRES OUT OF A PORTION OF SANDY CREEK 
PARK  

 
 WHEREAS, the Cities of Round Rock, Cedar Park, and Leander (the “Cities”) are the founding 
participating cities of the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority, Inc., (“BCRUA”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the purpose of the BCRUA is to aid, assist, and act on behalf of the Cities in the 
performance of their governmental functions to promote the common good and general welfare of the Cities, 
including the financing, construction, acquisition, ownership, maintenance and operation of a regional water 
transmission, treatment, and distribution system;  
 

WHEREAS, the BCRUA proposes to enter into a purchase contract with the Lower Colorado River 
Authority (the “LCRA”) for the acquisition of a 1.685 acre pumping station site, a 0.802 acre temporary 
construction easement, and two subsurface easements totaling 3.554 acres out of a portion of Sandy Creek 
Park; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the BCRUA’s bylaws require the Cities to authorize BCRUA to enter the purchase 
contract with the LCRA; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
 Section 2. Approval of Agreement. The City Council of the City of Leander hereby authorizes the 
Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority to enter into a purchase contract in a form substantially similar to that 
attached hereto with the Lower Colorado River Authority for $415,901 for acquisition of a 1.685 acre 
pumping station site, a 0.802 acre temporary construction easement, and two subsurface easements totaling 
3.554 acres out of a portion of Sandy Creek Park.  
 

Section 3.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and 
purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
Attest:       THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
______________________________   _________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 












































































	Agenda
	Item # 5
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 21



